
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
The next meeting of the LICENSING Committee will be held at 6.30 pm on TUESDAY, 
21 MARCH 2023 in the Council Chamber. 
 
I do hope you can be there. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
  
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 
2.   TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS 

MEETING 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

 
3.   DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, 

OTHER REGISTRABLE AND NON REGISTRABLE 
INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable 
interest in respect of matters contained in the agenda. 
  
 

 

 
4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
5.   SCRAP METAL DEALERS ACT 2013 - UPDATED 

GUIDANCE AND POLICY CHANGES 
 

(Pages 7 - 46) 

 Report of Chief Executive enclosed 
 

 
 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 
 
6.   TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES (SAFEGUARDING 

AND ROAD SAFETY) ACT 2022 
 

(Pages 47 - 50) 

 Report of Chief Executive enclosed 
 

 
 
7.   RELAXATION OF THE LICENSING HOURS FOR THE 

CORONATION 
 

(Pages 51 - 52) 

Public Document Pack



 

 Report of Chief Executive enclosed 
 

 
 
8.   MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 

15/12/22 
 

(Pages 53 - 54) 

 
9.   MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 

03/02/23 
 

(Pages 55 - 58) 

 
10.   REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE 

BODIES 
 

 

 
11.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 
 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Electronic agendas sent to members of Licensing – Councillor Stella Brunskill JP 
(Chair), Councillor Jan Alcock JP, Councillor Richard Bennett (Vice-Chair), Councillor 
Ian Brown, Councillor Steve Farmer, Councillor Gaynor Hibbert, Councillor Simon Hore, 
Councillor Angeline Humphreys, Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor Donna 
O'Rourke, Councillor Simon O'Rourke, Councillor Sarah Rainford, Councillor James 
(Jim) Rogerson, Councillor Gary Scott and Councillor Robin Walsh. 
 
 
 
Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk  

mailto:committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk


 

 
 

Minutes of Licensing 
 
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, 31 January 2023, starting at  6.30 pm 
Present:  Councillor S Brunskill (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
R Bennett 
I Brown 
S Farmer 
G Hibbert 
A Humpheys 
 

R Newmark 
D O'Rourke 
S O'Rourke 
S Rainford 
 

 
In attendance: Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Solicitor 
 

671 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for the meeting were received from Councillors J Alcock, S Hore, J 
Rogerson, G Scott and R Walsh 
  
 

672 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2022 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
  
 

673 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-
registrable interests. 
  
 

674 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
  
 

675 FEES AND CHARGES  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report seeking to determine the annual fees for 
hackney carriage, private hire, scrap metal and sex establishment licences. 
  
It was recommended to Members that the fees be uplifted by reference to inflation, 
based on 10.1%.  The exception to this is the cost of a replacement plate and bracket 
for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licenses, which will remain the same as these 
are charged at cost and the costs have not increased. 
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  

1.    Agreed to set the fees for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences for the 
year 2023/2024 as those set out in Appendix 1 of the Report. 
  

2.    Agreed to set the fees for Scrap Metal Dealers Licences for the year 
2023/2024 as those set out in Appendix 2 of the Report. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

  
3.    Agree to set the fees for Sex Establishment Licences for the year 2023/2024 

as those set out in Appendix 3 of the Report. 
  
  
 

676 AMENDMENT TO COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE  
 
The Council set the dates for the Committee cycle at its Annual Meeting on 9 May 
2022.  The dates for the final cycle of meeting include Policy and Finance as being 
held on 4 April 2023.  This is the same date as close of nominations in the District and 
Parish elections.  As such the Council’s Chief Executive, Director of Resources and 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services will be heavily involved in preparing and 
checking the nomination papers so that the data can be submitted to the printers. 
  
The closing of Nomination is at 4pm on 4 April 2023 and the work checking the 
nominations is likely to take a considerable amount of time that evening.  It was 
proposed therefore that the date for Policy and Finance Committee be brought 
forward a week to 28 March 2023 and that Licensing Committee be brought forward a 
week to 21 March 
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  
****Approved and agreed to recommend to Full Council that the date for Licensing 
Committee be amended from 28 March 2023 to 21 March 2023.**** 
  
 

677 TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES DISABLED PERSONS ACT 2022  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report to inform Committee of the outcome of 
consultation on proposed amendments to conditions of licences for drivers and 
operators, to infringement schemes and the Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
Licensing Policy, to reflect the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, as amended by 
the Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles (Disabled Persons) Act 2022 (“the Act”), and to 
seek Committee’s formal approval of such amendments. 
  
Members were informed that the Council’s Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
wrote to all Private Hire drivers, Private Hire operators and Hackney Carriage drivers.   
The Council received no responses to this aspect of the consultation. 
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  

1.    Approved amendment of the conditions, schemes and policy as identified in 
paragraph 2.1 of the Report. 
  

2.    Approved the introduction of the requirement for Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire drivers to undergo training on the equality duties provided by the Blue 
Lamp Trust 

  
 

678 HACKNEY CARRIAGE SIGNAGE  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report to inform Committee of the outcome of 
consultation on signage on Hackney Carriages and to ask Committee to decide 
whether there should be an amendment to the Council’s Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
conditions. 
  

Page 4



 

 
 

The Council received 11 responses to the consultation.  
  
Members were informed that nine respondents, all being Hackney Carriage drivers, 
did not support the proposal. The majority (eight) considered that the sign on the roof 
and plates are sufficient. Three respondents were concerned about additional 
expenses for drivers, and two expressed concerns about additional expense for the 
Council.  One driver perceived that passengers are less likely to travel in a vehicle 
with more signage, and another stated simply that door signage was not required. 
  
Two respondents had stated that they supported the proposal, with one Private Hire 
licence holder referring to introduction of a possible colour scheme for Hackney 
Carriages. 
  
Members considered the representations and balanced the views of the licensed 
trade with the possible public benefit that might arise from adoption of the proposed 
signage.  
  
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE: 
  
Agreed that condition 25 of the Council’s Hackney Carriage Vehicle conditions be 
amended to require Hackney Carriage Vehicles to display door signage reading 
‘Ribble Valley Licensed Hackney Carriage’. 
  
 

679 SECTION 182 GUIDANCE LICENSING ACT 2003  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report to inform Committee of the revision of the 
guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
  
The Home Office revised the guidance in December 2022 in respect of the following 
issues: 
  

         Entitlement to work in the UK. 

         Relevant offences. 

         Temporary Event Notices – Section 7. 

         Full Variation Process. 

         Conditions attached to a Premises Licence. 

         Planning and Building Control. 

The Committee noted the contents of the report. 

  
 

680 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies. 
  
 

681 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
There were no reports requiring the exclusion of the press and public. 
  
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.03 pm 

Page 5



 

 
 

 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Jenny 
Martin  01200 413214 rebecca.tait@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 6



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 21 MARCH 2023 
title: REVIEW OF SCRAP METAL LICENSING POLICY AND UPDATED 
 HOME OFFICE GUIDANCE 
submitted by: MARSHAL SCOTT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER – SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1  To seek Committee’s approval of draft revisions to the Scrap Metal Dealers’ Act 

Policy, and to authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult upon 
it.  
 

1.2  To inform Committee of the issue of updated guidance by the Home Office on the 
Scrap Metal Dealers’ Act 2013. 

 
1.3 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

• Community Objectives – } 
 

• Corporate Priorities – } 
 

• Other Considerations – } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Scrap Metal Dealers’ Act 2013 (“the Act”) came into force on 1 October 2013.  

Committee approved a Scrap Metal Dealers’ Policy in March 2015, which was 
revised and updated in September 2018 (“the Policy”). 

 
2.2 The purpose of the Policy is to provide guidance on the way in which the Council will 

administer and enforce the requirements of the Act.  While there is no requirement 
under the Act for the Policy to be reviewed, the Policy itself states that it will be 
reviewed every 5 years or sooner to reflect any legislative or other changes. 

 
2.3 The Act was supported by Home Office guidance issues in 2013.  That guidance has 

been updated in January 2023.  A copy of the updated guidance is attached at 
Appendix 1.  The guidance helpfully includes a list of amendments at page 2. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 In light of the above, it was thought that this was an opportune moment for the 

Council to review the Policy, shortly before its 5 year anniversary.  Since the 
commencement of the Act and introduction of the Policy, there have been relatively 
few licences applied for and only one application has gone to a hearing of the 
Licensing Sub-Committee.  Currently, there are 2 licensed mobile collectors and 1 
licensed scrap metal site. 

 
3.2 The Policy has been revised to reflect minor textual corrections and clarification from 

the January 2023 guidance.  These revisions are shown in track changes and 
enclosed at Appendix 2. 

DECISION

The Council aims to be a well-managed 
authority.  These proposals support that 
objective.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 
3.3 In preparation for the publication of the revised policy, the Council will consult the 

bodies named in paragraph 1.1 of the Policy. 
 
3.4 Committee is asked to consider the contents of the draft revised Policy and, should it 

be approved, to authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult 
upon it with those parties listed in the Policy.  The results of the consultation will then 
be reported to Committee. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

• Resources – No implications identified. 
 

• Technical, Environmental and Legal - No implications identified. 
 

• Political – No implications identified. 
 

• Reputation – No implications identified. 
 
•  Equality & Diversity – No implications identified. 

 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1  Approve the revisions to the Scrap Metal Dealers’ Policy. 
 
5.2 Authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult upon the revised 

Policy. 
 
5.3 Note the updated Home Office guidance. 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
REF: SB/LICENSING/21 MARCH 2023 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 21 MARCH 2023 
title: TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES (SAFEGUARDING AND ROAD 
 SAFETY) ACT 2022 
submitted by: MARSHAL SCOTT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER – SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the imminent introduction of a duty for local authorities to 

utilise the database operated by the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) providing 
the National Register for Revocations, Refusals and Suspensions (NR3S). 

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

• Community Objectives – } 
 

• Corporate Priorities – } 
 

• Other Considerations – } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Committee will recall that the Council had already voluntarily subscribed to the NR3 

operated by NAFN, and a policy in respect of handling and disclosure of information 
in this respect was approved on 1 November 2022. This enables the Council to 
record revocations and refusals of licenses relating to hackney carriage and private 
hire drivers and to report such activity to the database operated by NAFN. 

 
2.2 The Secretary of State for Transport has now written to licensing authorities 

announcing the designation of NAFN as the database provider under section 1(4) of 
the Act. In addition, what had been known as NR3 (National Register of Revocations 
and Refusals) under the voluntary scheme operated by NAFN has now become the 
NR3S (National Register of Revocations, Refusals and Suspensions) under the 
mandatory scheme. 

 
2.3 It should be noted that licence suspensions are applicable in the relatively rare cases 

where an otherwise fit and proper person has not been able to satisfy a requirement 
that can be achieved, for example, by submission of a satisfactory medical certificate 
or DBS report, and the suspension is lifted on compliance. 

 
2.4 A copy of the letter from the Secretary of State is attached at Appendix 1.  

Committee will note that the cost of access to the NR3S will be met by the 
Department for Transport, and therefore that element of the Council’s access to 
NAFN databases will be free of charge to the Council. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 Committee will note that it is intended to commence the remaining provisions of the 

Act on 27 April 2023, but that this relates principally to enabling those authorities not 
already registered with NAFN so to do. 

INFORMATION

The Council aims to be a well-managed 
Council, providing efficient services based 
on identified customer  needs.

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



3.2 It appears that the Council already has the appropriate processes and procedures in 
place. At the meeting on 1 November 2022, Committee approved the adoption of the 
Council’s policy in respect of requests for information, disclosure of information, and 
use of information as a result of an entry on NR3. This policy was prepared from a 
template supplied by NAFN, and officers will monitor NAFN to establish whether a 
fresh template is prepared to reflect the mandatory use of the database and the 
incorporation of registration of suspensions. An updated policy will be submitted to a 
future meeting of this Committee, based either on a revised template from NAFN or 
incorporating amendments determined by officers. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

• Resources – There may be some reduction in the annual fee paid to NAFN. 
 

• Technical, Environmental and Legal – Some officer time will be expended in 
updating the policy. 

 
• Political – No implications identified. 

 
• Reputation – No implications identified. 
 
•  Equality & Diversity – No implications identified. 

 
5 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Committee is asked to note the contents of the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 

Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 21 MARCH 2023 
title: RELAXATION OF LICENSING HOURS FOR THE CORONATION 
submitted by: MARSHAL SCOTT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER – SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the relaxation of licensing hours on 5, 6 and 7 May 2023. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

• Community Objectives – } 
 

• Corporate Priorities – } 
 

• Other Considerations – } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Government considers that the coronation of King Charles III is an event of 

exceptional national importance.  On 19 December 2022, it launched a consultation 
to seek views on whether to relax licensing hours across England and Wales in 
accordance with Section 172 of the Licensing Act 2003.  The consultation closed on 
23 January 2023.  This consultation included the public, responsible authorities’ 
representatives and trade organisations. 

 
2.2 The Government proposal was for extension of licensing hours for licensed premises 

and clubs during the celebration period, being 5 May 2023 to 8 May 2023.  Provision 
was to be made for any licensed premises or clubs which would normally be open for 
licensed activities until or after 11.00pm (but closed before 1.00am) to remain open 
until 1.00am, if so desired, on each of 5 May, 6 May and 7 May 2023 (ie Friday, 
Saturday and Sunday night extensions, concluding the following morning).  The 
extensions would only apply to sales and supply for on-site consumption, and late-
night food premises may only remain open if they are also licensed to sell or supply 
alcohol for consumption on the premises at the specified times. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Government has not published the response to the consultation at the time of 

preparation of this report (7 March 2023).  However, it is reported that 77% of the 
public were in favour of the longer opening, and the Home Secretary has announced 
that there is to be a licensing hours order for the celebration period, in the terms 
stated in 2.2 above. 

 
3.2 A draft licensing hours order in those terms was laid before Parliament on 

6 March 2023, for approval by resolution of each House of Parliament under Section 
197(4) of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
3.3 Subject to such approval, the order will be made.  The Government considers that 

1.00am is an acceptable cut-off time.  Premises which do not fall within the 

INFORMATION

The Council aims to be a well-managed 
authority.  These proposals support that 
objective.

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



categories mentioned in 2.2 above, or premises which are within the categories and 
wish to extend their hours further, would need to apply for a Temporary Event Notice. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 
 

• Resources – No implications identified. 
 

• Technical, Environmental and Legal - No implications identified. 
 

• Political – No implications identified. 
 

• Reputation – No implications identified. 
 
•  Equality & Diversity – No implications identified. 

 
5 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  Committee is asked to note the contents of the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
REF: SB/CMS/LICENSING/21 MARCH 2023 

Page 52



 

 
 

Minutes of Sub-Committee of the Licensing Committee 
 
Meeting Date:  Thursday, 15 December 2022, starting at  3.00 pm 
Present:  Councillor R Bennett (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
J Alcock 
 

S O'Rourke 
 

 
In attendance: Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Electoral and Licensing 
Officer   
 

553 WELCOME  
 

554 APOLOGIES AND RE-CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

555 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

556 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED: That by virtue of the next items of business being exempt information 
under Paragraphs 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting. 
  

557 LICENSING HEARING - TAXI  
 
The Sub-Committee received a report from the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services requesting that they determine whether the applicant of a hackney carriage 
drivers’ licence be a fit and proper person to hold a licence due to the number of 
penalty points accumulated on the driver’s DVLA licence exceeding 7, being the 
number which could be accepted under the Council’s Policy and Guidelines on 
Relevant Convictions without reference to the Sub-committee. 
  
The applicant and his representative attended the hearing and made submissions 
and responded to questions by the Sub-committee. 
  
RESOLVED : That the hackney carriage driver’s licence application be refused. 
  

558 LICENSING HEARING - TAXI  
 
The Sub-committee received a report from the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services informing them of an application for a private hire driver’s licence and 
requesting that the Sub-committee determine whether the applicant was a fit and 
proper person to hold such a licence in the light of information received from the other 
local authority he currently held a licence with. 
  
The applicant attended the hearing and made submissions and responded to 
questions by the Sub-committee. 
  
RESOLVED : That the private hire driver’s licence application be approved. 
  

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

  
  
 
 
The meeting closed at 3.20 pm 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, 
Rebecca Tait Rebecca.Tait@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 54



 

 
 

Minutes of Sub-Committee of the Licensing Committee 
 
Meeting Date:  Friday, 3 February 2023, starting at  10.00 am 
Present:  Councillor S O'Rourke (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
I Brown 
 

D O'Rourke 
 

 
In attendance: Solicitor, Licensing Officer and Administration Assistant (Licensing)  
 

Also in attendance:  

Everything Retreat - Mrs L Monk (Director of Everything Luxury Hamlet Limited), Mr C 
Monk (Director of Everything Luxury Hamlet Limited), Mr A Gregson (Director of 
Everything Luxury Hamlet Limited), Mr A Gregson (Representative for Everything 
Luxury Hamlet Limited), Mr I Thomson (relevant representative), Ms L Bell (relevant 
representative), Ms N Clay (relevant representative), Ms A Lucas (relevant 
representative) 
 
Stanley House Marquee – Mr S Ahmed (Director of AF Events Blackburn Limited), Mr 
P Thompson (relevant representative), Ms K Davies (relevant representative), Ms A 
Walker (relevant representative), Mr A Gillett (relevant representative), Councillor S 
Brunskill (advancing relevant representation by Mellor Parish Council) 
 

695 WELCOME  
 

696 APOLOGIES AND RE-CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies received. 
 

697 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND 
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or non-
registrable interests. 
 

698 EVERYTHING RETREAT, PRIMROSE LANE, MELLOR, BLACKBURN BB2 7EQ  
 
The Sub-Committee met to consider the application by the Everything Luxury Hamlet 
Limited for a Premises Licence to be granted for the Everything Retreat, Primrose 
Lane, Mellor, Blackburn BB2 7EQ. 
  
The Sub-Committee considered the contents of the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services and its appendices. 
  
The Chairman introduced the premises licence application and the Council’s Solicitor 
outlined the format that the hearing would take to allow for a fair, proportionate and 
proper decision to be made. 
  
Initially the application had sought to allow the provision of films but this request had 
been withdrawn prior to the Hearing. 
  
The Applicant’s representative, Mr Gregson, made verbal representations advising 
that the application would promote the licensing objectives.  He confirmed that the 

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 

application related solely to the sale of alcohol to visitors residing at the premises 
overnight and their guests between 8am and 10pm.  He outlined that the lodges are 
situated on private grounds facing towards fields, and with proper management, he 
did not believe that noise levels would cause a nuisance.  Taking into account the 
number of people who stay in the lodges (there are 12 lodges and each lodge 
accommodates 2 people), and the reason they are staying there, he did not believe 
there would be any nuisance caused. 
  
There were four objectors in attendance.  They relied on their previous written 
representations but, along with the Members and the Council’s Solicitor, asked 
several questions of Mr Gregson to seek clarification on aspects of the application.  
With regards to the private meeting suite for corporate events, it was confirmed that 
this would just be available for use by guests who are staying overnight. 
   
A resident expressed concern about additional traffic and the limited parking available 
in the event that additional guests were to able to attend the premises, but it was 
noted that this could arise irrespective of the existence of a licence, and was a 
planning matter rather than a licensing issue.  Concern was also expressed about the 
possibility of unruly behaviour due to there being a licence. 
  
The Licensing Sub-Committee carefully considered the representations made by all 
parties, both written and verbal, together with the Licensing Act 2003 and relevant 
guidance, the regulations and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 
  
RESOLVED:  
  
The Sub-Committee resolved to grant the Premise Licence for the Everything Retreat, 
Primrose Lane, Mellor, Blackburn BB2 7EQ as applied for, with the exception that the 
request to provide films had been withdrawn. 
  
 

699 STANLEY HOUSE MARQUEE, FURTHER LANE, MELLOR BB2 7NP  
 
The Sub-Committee met to consider the application of AF Events Blackburn Limited 
for a premises licence in respect of Stanley House Marquee, Further Lane, Mellor, 
Blackburn, BB2 7NP. 
  
The Sub-Committee considered the contents of the report of the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services and its appendices. 
  
The Director of the Applicant had submitted an email and letter to the Licensing 
Authority the day preceding the hearing outlining the company ethos and in particular 
its event management strategy.  As part of the strategy, the company proposed to 
gather data of neighbouring residents to be able to circulate them with details of 
proposed activities, and to carry out an assessment on how it should 
strengthen/install acoustic barriers to the marquee and closest residential areas.  The 
director agreed to copies of this document being circulated to those who had attended 
in support of relevant representations. 
  
There were five objectors in attendance and Mrs Davies had prepared notes for 
presentation of objections to the application by the residents.  The Director of the 
Applicant agreed to these notes being copied and circulated to the Members of the 
Sub-Committee and others present.  The notes remarked (amongst other issues) on 
the absence of evidence of a risk assessment having been carried out prior to 
submission of the application and (in the event that the application was not refused) 
that there should be a comprehensive noise impact assessment commissioned by the 
applicant from an independent suitably qualified and competent person. 

Page 56



 

 
 

  
The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant was proposing to carry out an 
assessment in respect of noise and the notes prepared by the objector considered 
that an assessment should already have been carried out or obtained prior to 
determination of the application.   
  
RESOLVED: 
  
In accordance with section 9 of the Ribble Valley Borough Council procedure for the 
conduct of hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 providing for adjournment of 
hearings to a specified date, the Sub-Committee determined that the application 
should be adjourned until 10am on Friday 17 March 2023 to enable the Applicant to 
commission an appropriate noise impact assessment from an independent and 
suitably qualified person.  This would enable the Sub-Committee to have relevant 
evidence with which to decide the application. 
  
  
 

700 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
That by virtue of the next items of business being exempt information under 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 that press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting. 
 

701 LICENSING - TAXI  
 
The Sub-Committee received a report from the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services requesting that they determine whether the Applicant was a fit and proper 
person to hold a private hire driver’s licence due to the number of penalty points 
accumulated on the driver’s DVLA licence exceeding 7, being the number which 
could be accepted under the Council’s Policy and Guidelines on Relevant Convictions 
without reference to the Sub-Committee. 
  
The Applicant attended the meeting and made submissions and responded to 
questions by the Sub-Committee. 
  
RESOLVED: 
  
That the private hire driver’s licence application be refused. 
  
 
 
The meeting closed at 1.40 pm 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Jenny 
Martin  01200 413214 or at Rebecca.Tait@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 - Updated Guidance and Policy Changes
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE
	Scrap metal report app 1
	Scrap metal report app 2

	6 Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles (Safeguarding and Road Safety) Act 2022
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE
	Taxi and private Hire report app 1

	7 Relaxation of the Licensing hours for the Coronation
	REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE

	8 Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee - 15/12/22
	9 Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee - 03/02/23

